
Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board 
Wednesday January 21st, 2015; 3:00 pm – 5:00 pm 

CVB, 904 East Shore Drive, Ithaca 
 
AGENDA                    Start Time   
1) Welcome new STPB Members              3:00 
2) Opener                     
3) Nominating Committee – Anne Kellerman            3:10   

 Vote to elect 2015 STPB Officers 
4) December STPB Meeting Minutes               

 ACTION – Approve Meeting Minutes 
5) Privilege of the Floor                3:15 

 Limit of 3 minutes per person for members of the public to address the board   
6) Chair’s REPORT – Sue Perlgut              3:20 

 2015 Draft Committee Assignments 

 Conflict of Interest Policy 

 STPB Member Roles and Responsibilities 
7) Staff REPORT – Tom Knipe                3:30 

 2015 Staff Work Plan – Feedback invited 
8) STPB Member Goals for – SMALL GROUP DISCUSSION – Christy Agnese    3:45 
9) Tourism Grant review process changes –Tom Knipe, Christy Agnese      4:10 

 ACTION – Approve recommendation to combine TMA and NTI/TPG Committees into one Tourism 
Grant Review Committee 

10) Strategic Tourism Implementation funding – Ken Jupiter, Tom Knipe     4:15 

 ACTION – Approve recommended 2015 allocation process 
11) Membership and Bylaws Committee – Lynnette Scofield        4:25 

 ACTION – Recommend appointment of new At‐Large STPB member 
12) CVB REPORT ‐ Bruce Stoff                4:30     
13) Finger Lakes Wine Center REPORT– Christy Agnese          4:45 

 ACTION – Adopt the report and its recommendations 
14) Ticket Center Ithaca REPORT – John Spence            4:50 

 ACTION – Adopt the report and its recommendations 
 
Agenda Packet 

1. December 2014 draft STPB meeting minutes  
2. Conflict of Interest Policy and Disclosure Form (copies also to be provided at the meeting) 
3. STPB Member Roles and Responsibilities 
4. 2015 Draft Committee Assignments 
5. STPB Committee Descriptions 
6. Draft Guidelines ‐ 2015 Strategic Tourism Implementation Grant Funding Opportunity 
7. CVB January 2015 Report 
8. “Understanding the Failure of the Finger Lakes Wine Center” Report (Revised) 
9. “Understanding the Closure of the Ticket Center” Report (Revised) 
 

Next Meeting 
Wednesday, February 18th 
 
 

 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 1



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes Draft – December 2014 

Page 1  

Date:  December 17, 2014  1 
Time:  3:00-5:45pm 2 
Location:          Coltivare 3 
 4 
Attendees: 5 

Name Representation 

Sue Perlgut  Arts-Culture 

Susie Monagan  Arts-Culture 

John Spence  CAP, Non-Voting 

Bruce Stoff  CVB, Non-Voting 

Dwight Mengel A Transportation, Non-Voting 

Gary Ferguson  DIA, Non-Voting 

Jennifer Tavares Chamber, Non-Voting 

Martha Armstrong  TCAD, Non-Voting 

Will Burbank TC Legislature, Non-Voting 

Beverly Baker A Associate Member 

Carol Kammen A Associate Member 

Jon Reis  Associate Member 

Tom Knipe Staff 

Jennifer Turner  Staff 
 7 
 8 

 9 
Also in attendance: Ronda Roaring, Jon Reis 10 
 11 
Meeting Agenda 12 
October STPB Meeting Minutes 13 
Privilege of the Floor 14 
Chair’s Report – Rick Adie 15 
Staff Report – Tom Knipe 16 
CVB Report – Bruce Stoff 17 
Membership and Bylaws Committee –Lynnette Scofield 18 

ACTION – Recommend appointment of new STPB members 19 
Finger Lakes Wine Center REPORT and DISCUSSION - Christy Agnese 20 
Ticket Center Ithaca REPORT and DISCUSSION – John Spence 21 
Planning & Evaluation Committee REPORT – Ken Jupiter 22 
AirBnB legislative resolution REPORT – Will Burbank 23 
Community Celebrations Grant Review Committee 24 

ACTION – approve proposed modifications to the grant guidelines, evaluation criteria, and 25 
application process 26 

Nominating Committee Report – Anne Kellerman 27 
Ag & Culinary Tourism Task Force update – Rita Rosenberg-Barber, Ethan Ash 28 
 29 
The meeting was called to order at 3:07 PM. 30 
 31 
Privilege of the Floor – Ronda Roaring spoke on the importance of the inclusion of students in tourism 32 
funded events. She asked members of the STPB to be more aware of whether there are elements that 33 
encourage student and family participation when going through the grant application process. 34 
 35 
Chair’s Report – Rick Adie reported on the Trailhead Dedication on November 6th which was a joint event 36 
that focused on the opening of the last trail head of the Cayuga Waterfront Trail and the recognition of two 37 
Tourism Partner Awards presented to Tony Damiani and Jeff Christen with the HEDW conference in 2013.  38 
Amanda Mott was also presented with an award for the New York State Veterinary Conference of 2013. 39 
Rick Manning was congratulated for his efforts with the trailhead at Stewart Park. Rick Adie noted the 40 
heartfelt email from Sandy Stein regarding the kind words spoken on behalf of the late Stuart Stein. 41 

Name Representation 

Anne Kellerman At-Large 

Ian Golden Recreation 

Ethan Ash  Arts-Culture 

John Gutenberger  Cornell 

Lynette Scofield  Lodging 

Rick Adie  Lodging 

Rita Rosenberg-Barber  Agriculture 

Andy Zepp  At-Large 

Stephen Nunley A At-Large 

Steve Hugo At-Large 

Ken Jupiter  At-Large 

Mike Mellor At-Large 

Anne Gossen At-Large 

Sue Stafford  TC3 

Christy Agnese  At-Large 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 2



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes Draft – December 2014 

Page 2  

 42 
Staff Report – Tom Knipe announced that the bids for the final phase of the Cayuga Waterfront Trail came 43 
in under budget with construction scheduled to begin in March and a completion date in September. The 44 
Cayuga Nature Center received $1,250,000 from two separate grants and had received letters of support 45 
from the Strategic Tourism Planning Board. The Tompkins County Comprehensive Plan is in process and 46 
will be moved through the Legislature in early 2015. Room tax is on track to meet the projections of 5% 47 
growth for the year. Tom noted that early next year the Tourism Program will need to identify a process for 48 
allocating the $150,000 in funding available in 2015 for Strategic Tourism Implementation. The Legislature 49 
has approved both the 2015 STPB grants and budget. The Convention and Visitor’s Bureau is working to 50 
develop a program evaluation plan that other tourism programs will be encouraged to use to develop and 51 
implement evaluation plans in the next year.  52 
 53 
CVB Report – Bruce Stoff reported that through working more efficiently this past year, the Convention and 54 
Visitor’s Bureau is under budget by $40,000-$45,000.He noted that part of the savings may have been 55 
related to the Ithaca Commons Opening Celebration scheduled for this past fall that was canceled. The 56 
event is now slated for summer of 2015. Room revenue according to the STR report is up 9% for October; 57 
STR report numbers for November are currently not available. The CVB is in the process of hiring a new 58 
marketing coordinator and suggests that members of the STPB share this with their networks for potential 59 
candidates. $30,000 has been awarded by the Southern Tier Regional Economic Development Council to 60 
the CVB for its mobile technological Visitor Services initiative. The project will focus on capturing more than 61 
the current 20,000 of the 800,000+ visitors yearly that visit the Visitors Centers. Matching funds from the 62 
State this fiscal year are $61,541 with $22,000 for regional spending. Bruce noted his nomination as Chair 63 
of the Finger Lakes Regional Tourism Council. 64 
 65 
Membership and Bylaws Committee – Lynnette Scofield reported that she, Sue Perlgut, and John 66 
Gutenberger met in the fall and bring the following recommendations to the board: 67 
 68 
Kelli Cartmill (Sales Manager at the Hilton Garden Inn) – Lodging  69 
Josh Friedman (Hangar Theatre) – Arts & Culture 70 
Rita Rosenberg-Barber – Reappointment to the Agriculture seat 71 
 72 
Action: Lynnette Scofield’s report served as a motion to move the recommendations, seconded by Christy 73 
Agnese and passed by unanimous vote. The recommendations will be forwarded to the Legislature. 74 
 75 
Finger Lakes Wine Center REPORT and DISCUSSION – Christy Agnese provided a full report which was 76 
based in part on interviews conducted regarding the closing of the Finger Lakes Wine Center. Christy asked 77 
members of the STPB for questions or feedback on the report. A rich discussion followed with a number of 78 
comments from STPB members. STPB Members will be asked to adopt the report at the January STPB 79 
meeting. Her report can be viewed in the STPB Agenda packet for the month of December.    80 
 81 
Ticket Center Ithaca REPORT and DISCUSSION – John Spence thanked Lynnette Scofield and Steve 82 
Hugo on their support and feedback with the report he compiled “Understanding the Closure of the Ticket 83 
Center”. He noted that his report did not include the interview questions but added that the questions asked 84 
were the same as the questions included in the “Understanding the Failure of the Wine Center” report. His 85 
report can be viewed in the STPB Agenda packet for the month of December.    86 
 87 
Member Comments and Feedback – Members provided a number of different comments and feedback 88 
on both reports. The Board will vote to adopt the reports in January and may present the reports to the 89 
Legislature at a later date. 90 
 91 
Planning & Evaluation Committee REPORT – Ken Jupiter reported on recent policy discussions. 92 
Discussions centered on three questions.  The Planning and Evaluation Committee has determined that 93 
there is a lot of potential in expanding the goal of CVB services to include “additional spending” from those 94 
already coming into the market for the colleges, those staying with friends and family, and day-trippers. . 95 
Another key element discussed was expanding our understanding of the audiences and delivery methods 96 
for Visitor Services to include digital (especially mobile), not just the Visitors Centers. Sales efforts were 97 
discussed as needing to be broadened for greater impact outside of the normal range of new meetings and 98 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 3



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes Draft – December 2014 

Page 3  

tours. A noted challenge is the lack of convention space for visitors. Discussions centered on finding ways 99 
to increase stays by focusing on college visitors and community assets to draw longer visits. The CVB will 100 
be working on creating a final evaluation plan that will include the new policy guidelines to be presented to 101 
members of the STPB at a later date. Members are encouraged to send any questions or concerns to 102 
Bruce Stoff or Tom Knipe. 103 
    104 
AirBnB legislative resolution REPORT – Rick Adie reported on the resolution drafted by Tom Knipe and 105 
first brought to the Economic Development Committee regarding addressing the issues related to the 106 
growth in short-term online rental platforms such as AirBnB. Rick noted the urgency in drafting the 107 
resolution as the Tompkins County Legislature requested the resolution be brought to the EDC in order to 108 
be presented to the New York State Association of Counties and be presented at the next Legislative 109 
session.  110 
 111 
Will Burbank went on to report that a goal in creating the resolution was to see if support can be offered at 112 
the State level to encourage active compliance with existing laws. He went on to report that although some 113 
Members of the Legislature felt it was too early to ask the State for support, the resolution did pass. 114 
 115 
Tom Knipe commented on the media and public interest on the room tax issue. Two workshops will be 116 
hosted this week by a group of Airbnb operators to provide information about the room tax registration 117 
process and compliance with other local laws. Tom noted his conversation with the Public Policy Manager 118 
at AirBnB who will be meeting with us when he visits Ithaca.  119 
 120 
Community Celebrations Grant Review Committee ACTION – Tom Knipe reported on the two changes 121 
made to the application process. The 1st change will be to move the application process online. Other 122 
avenues for applying will still be made available to applicants. The 2nd change will allow not-for-profits the 123 
opportunity to apply directly without using a municipality as a fiscal sponsor. With no objections, the 124 
changes were accepted by the Strategic Tourism Planning Board. 125 
 126 
Ag & Culinary Tourism Task Force update – Rita Rosenberg-Barber reported on the launch event on 127 
November 10th at the Space at GreenStar. She noted the great success and 100 participants and the 300 128 
comments received. A draft outline for the Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan will be presented at 129 
the February STPB meeting. Special thanks went out to Kristy Mitchell for her efforts. 130 
 131 
Nominating Committee Report – Anne Kellerman reported that the she, Ken Jupiter, and Rick Adie have 132 
nominated the following slate to be voted on at the Strategic Tourism Planning Board meeting on January 133 
21, 2015.  134 
 135 
Sue Perlgut – Chair 136 
Christy Agnese – Vice Chair 137 
 138 
With this meeting being Rick Adie’s last meeting of the STPB, he went on to note some of the challenges, 139 
accomplishments and joys of chairing the Strategic Tourism Planning Board and thanked members for their 140 
continued support. 141 
 142 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:20pm. A tour of Coltivare and reception followed. 143 
 144 
Respectfully Submitted, 145 
Jennifer Turner, Administrative Assistant 146 
Tompkins County Planning Department 147 
 148 
Next Meeting Scheduled 149 
Wednesday January 21, 2014 150 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 4



CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
TOMPKINS COUNTY STRATEGIC TOURISM PLANNING BOARD  
Adopted as an internal board policy via unanimous STPB vote, March 2009                                           

 

Tompkins County depends on volunteers to serve on its Strategic Tourism Planning Board 

(STPB).  STPB members have varied backgrounds and interests.  They are active in the 

community in their professional and private endeavors. Consequently, situations may arise that 

create a conflict of interest. 

This policy applies to all current members of the STPB and all members of any advisory 

committee involved in the decision making process. It is expected that all persons subject to 

this policy will conduct themselves honestly and fairly when dealing with STPB business. 

A conflict of interest is defined as an activity or interest of a Board member that may cause bias 

for or against a particular action being considered by the Board such as a grant request.  A 

conflict of interest will be presumed when the Board member or household member has a 

formal affiliation or interest in an organization, which could expect funding from a particular 

decision. 

Whenever a Board member identifies that a conflict of interest may exist with a funding 

request, policy decision, or any voting matter considered by the STPB or one of its Committees, 

the member will inform the STPB Chair or the Committee Chair of the conflict.  The Board 

member may (or may not) participate in the discussion at the appropriate Chair’s discretion, 

but will refrain from voting on the specific request.    

At the beginning of each calendar year, current STPB members will complete the Annual 

Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form.  The forms will be given to the Chair and kept on file by the 

Administrative Assistant of the STPB.  This information will be made available to all members of 

the STPB. 

 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 5



CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM 
TOMPKINS COUNTY STRATEGIC TOURISM PLANNING BOARD 
To be completed annually by all STPB members                      
 
I recognize that in my capacity as a Member of the STPB that a conflict of interest may arise due to 
my employment or my relationship to other organizations or programs. I hereby disclose the 
following with whom I am affiliated. 
 
ORGANIZATIONS 
 
Organizations active in Tompkins County with whom I, or a household member, are affiliated as a 
Board Member, or in a decision making capacity: 
 
                Name of Organization                                     Affiliation 
___________________________________        _________________________________                
___________________________________        _________________________________ 
___________________________________        _________________________________ 
___________________________________        _________________________________ 
___________________________________        _________________________________ 
___________________________________        _________________________________ 
 
BUSINESSES 
 
All local businesses in Tompkins County in which I, or a household member have ownership or 
employment that could potentially receive funds from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
 
               Name of Business                                            Affiliation 
___________________________________         ________________________________              
___________________________________         ________________________________                 
___________________________________         ________________________________ 
 
 
I certify that I have read, understand and agree to abide by STPB’s Conflict of Interest Policy and 
that the information provided above is accurate and true. If I or a household member experience a 
change in employment or any change in relationship with organizations or businesses which might 
cause a conflict of interest with the STPB, I will disclose this information to the Chair and amend 
this Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form. 
 
___________________________________          ________________________________ 
                   Print Name                                                Seat Representation 
 
___________________________________          ________________________________ 
                   Signature                                                           Date 
 
 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 6



Big Projects

•Chair a Tourism Working 
Group

•Lead board engagement 
on a policy issue

•Become an STPB Officer

Small Projects

•Research a topic and write 
it up

•Lead a board 
development initiative

•Assume leadership role in 
advancing an unassigned 
action

•Perform Committee work

Ongoing 
Opportunities

•Serve on an STPB 
Committee

•Attend a funded 
event/project

•Act as an STPB liaison to 
affiliated groups and 
projects

Minimum 
Expectations

•Attend monthly meetings

•Read agenda materials

•Sector representation

•Particpate actively in 
discussions

•Ask questions

Tompkins	County	STPB		
Roles	and	Responsibilities	
STPB	Mission		

The Strategic Tourism Planning Board is charged by the 

Tompkins County Legislature with providing oversight 

and strategic direction for tourism initiatives that 

promote economic development and enhance the 

quality of life in Tompkins County. 

Board	member	questions	
 What can our board do? 

 What is the Tourism Coordinator role? 

 What is the CVB role and the role of other contracted programs? 

 How do we collectively stay focused on the Strategic Tourism Plan? 

 Where do I fit as an STPB member? What can I contribute? 

 What can I do? What can’t I do?  

A	range	of	opportunities	for	STPB	member	engagement	
 

STPB	Purpose	(From	
Bylaws)	

1.  To advise the 
appropriate committee of the 
Tompkins County Legislature, 
as well as the full Tompkins 
County Legislature, on all 
aspects of tourism 
development in Tompkins 
County. 
 
2.  To review and 
evaluate the activities of all 
entities receiving funds from 
the Tompkins County Room 
Occupancy Tax and to make 
recommendations to the 
entities receiving those funds 
as well as the Tompkins 
County Legislature in respect 
to their most appropriate and 
effective use. This includes 
the oversight of Tourism 
Grant Programs in place to 
assist events and programs of 
interest to local residents in 
attracting a broader audience 
from outside the County. 
 
3.  To develop, with 
input, a tourism policy for 
review and adoption by the 
Tompkins County Legislature 
which shall address all issues 
raised by reports and 
information pertinent to all 
aspects of tourism 
development. 
 
4.  To advise the 
Tompkins County Legislature, 
pursuant to the above 
clauses, on the allocation of 
proceeds from the Tompkins 
County Room Occupancy Tax. 

 

 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 7



2015 STPB Committees | Page 1 of 2

 
 

STPB Committee Assignments 2015 DRAFT 1/15/15 (send comments and suggestions to Sue Perlgut, scperl@verizon.net  
 

Committee Meetings Members by appointment Admin Chair Committee Members 
Executive As needed Former Chairs and Vice Chairs, 

Budget Chair and Current Chair 
and Vice Chair 

Tom Knipe 
 

 Sue Perlgut Sue Perlgut, Christy Agnese 
 

Standing Committees 

Budget 
4 Voting members 
required 

 Chair, Vice Chair Tom Knipe Christy 
Agnese 

Stephen Nunley, Sue Perlgut, Sue 
Stafford, John Gutenberger, Andy 
Zepp 

Membership & By-Laws 
3 Voting members 
required 

As needed  Tom Knipe Lynnette 
Scofield 

Sue Perlgut, John Gutenberger 
Anne Kellerman 

Nominating 
Appointed by vote of the 
full board 

As needed    Anne Kellerman, John Gutenberger 

Grant Review Committees (2 voting members required) 
Combined Tourism 
Grant Review (Tourism 
Projects, New Tourism 
Initiatives,  and Tourism 
Marketing and 
Advertising Grants) 

March, 
November 
(if needed) 

 Tom 
Knipe, 
Bruce Stoff 
(Tech 
Assistance) 

Steve Hugo  Jon Reis, Mike Mellor, Christy 
Agnese, Lynnette Scofield, Stephen 
Nunley, Christy Agnese, Anne 
Kellerman, Kelli Cartmill 

Community 
Celebrations 

March, 
November 

 Tom Knipe Carol 
Kammen 

Beverly Baker, Sue Perlgut, Jackie 
Kippola, Mike Lane, Sue Stafford, 
Anne Kellerman 
  

Arts and Culture 
Organizational 
Development Grant 

March Arts & Culture STPB reps John 
Spence 

? Sue Perlgut, Ethan Ash, Anne 
Gossen, Leslie Ackerman, Susie 
Monagan, Will Burbank 

Tourism Capital Grant April  Martha 
Armstrong 

? Steve Hugo, Ken Jupiter, Lynnette 
Scofield, Jennifer Tavares, Mike 
Mellor, Stephen Nunley, others 
recruited by TCAD 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 8



2015 STPB Committees | Page 2 of 2

 
 

 
Committee Meetings Members by appointment Admin Chair Members 
Special Committees 
Planning & Evaluation Monthly or 

bi-monthly 
 Tom Knipe Ken Jupiter Anne Kellerman, Sue Perlgut, Mike 

Mellor, Gary Ferguson, Ian Golden, 
Jennifer Tavares, Martha 
Armstrong, Bruce Stoff, Andy Zepp 

Festivals One or two 
times/year 

 Tom 
Knipe, 
Gary 
Ferguson  

  Gary Ferguson, Josh Friedman, 
Other community members 
(currently recruiting) 

Marketing Advisory 
Committee 

Quarterly  Bruce Stoff  Tom Knipe, Michael Mellor, Ethan 
Ash , Christy Agnese, Gary 
Ferguson, Jennifer Tavares, 
others appointed by CVB 

Beautification, Public 
Art, Signage 

  Jennifer 
Tavares 

 Ken Jupiter, Gary Ferguson, John 
Gutenberger, Tom Knipe, Chrys 
Gardiner, Monika Roth, Rick 
Manning, JoAnn Cornish, others 
appointed by the Chamber 

 
STPB Working Groups –  
 
Heritage Tourism Anne Gossen (Chair), Ian Golden, Anne Kellerman, Andy Zepp, Carol Kammen, Jean Currie/Rod Howe, Baruch 

Whitehead, Sherene Baugher, Christine O’Malley, John Spence, Jeff Chusid 
 
Agri-Culinary Tourism  Ethan Ash and Rita Rosenberg (Co-Chairs) Lynnette Scofield, Ian Golden, Gary Ferguson, Emma Frisch, 

Wynnie Stein, Laura Winter-Falk, Frederic Bouche, Kevin Moss, Athena Steinkraus, Sue Stafford, Kristy 
Mitchell, Sarah Imes, Vicki Taylor Brous, Sarah Kelsen 

 
Higher Education Tourism (not yet convened) Volunteers: Steve Hugo, John Gutenberger, Christy Agnese 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 9



 

1 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

Tompkins	County	Strategic	Tourism	Planning	Board	(STPB)	
Committee	Descriptions	
Updated	January,	2015	
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“ The standing committees shall be the Nominating Committee, the 

Membership & Bylaws Committee and the Budget Committee. 

Other committees, composed of at least two voting members of the 

STPB, may be created by the STPB Chair.” 

 

“The committees shall perform such duties as may be delegated to them by the 

establishing motion or by the Chair. Committees other than standing committees 

may select such advisors from outside the membership as they may deem 

2015 Committees of the STPB 2015 Chair (proposed) 
# STPB 
Members 

# Total 
Members 

Budget Christy Agnese 6 6 
Community Celebrations Carol Kammen 2 5 
Executive Sue Perlgut 3 3 
Festivals TBD 3 6 
Membership and Bylaws Lynnette Scofield 3 3 
Nominating TBD in fall 2015  3 3 
Planning and Evaluation Ken Jupiter  6 12 
Combined Tourism Grant  
Review  

Steve Hugo 4 5 

Tourism Partner Awards TBD 1 3 
Strategic Tourism 
Implementation  Grant Review 

TBD  2+  6 

 
2015 STPB Working Groups    

Agriculinary Tourism 
Ethan Ash & Rita 
Rosenberg‐Barber 

4‐5 10+ 

Heritage Tourism  Anne Gossen 4 10+ 
Tourism – Higher Education TBD 2+ 5‐8 

2015 Affiliated Committees with STPB 
ACOD Grant Review Committee John Spence (admin) 3 6 
Beautification, Signage and 
Public Art 

Jennifer Tavares (admin) 2 9+ 

Marketing Advisory Bruce Stoff (admin) 4+ ? 
Tourism Capital Grant Review 
Committee 

Martha Armstrong (admin) 2+ 6+ 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 10



 

2 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

necessary to perform their tasks. Committees may only be abolished by the entity 

that creates them. Committee chairs are appointed by the STPB Chair, except the 

Nominating Committee chair who is chosen by vote of Nominating Committee 

members.” 

‐ STPB Bylaws, Article Six, Section One 

STPB	Standing	Committees	

Budget	Committee		
The Budget Committee has at least four voting members (typically five), and is responsible for reviewing 
room occupancy tax revenues and projections, evaluating budget proposals, and drafting annual 
Tourism Program budget recommendations with Tompkins County staff support. 
 
The budget committee meets five or six times per year, with most of the work taking place in April, May 
and June. This includes one four‐hour meeting at the end of May during which program administrators 
and committee chairs present their budget requests for the following year. Budget committee members 
should be fluent in analyzing budget proposals, and possess a strong awareness of the overarching goals 
and structure of the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 

Membership	and	Bylaws	Committee	
The Membership & Bylaws Committee consists of at least three voting members of the STPB and 
recruits and recommends new STPB members and associate members. They also pursue board 
development initiatives and recommend revisions to bylaws as needed. The committee typically meets 
between three and six times per year, and the most significant period of work is in October and 
November during new member recruitment. Committee members should demonstrate enthusiasm for 
promoting effective board function and recruiting qualified and diverse community members to serve 
on the STPB. 

Nominating	Committee	
The Nominating Committee has at least three voting members. It is appointed annually by vote of the 
STPB membership and its sole responsibility is to present a slate of officers for the next year no later 
than the last regular meeting of each year. A member other than a prospective officer serves as chair of 
the Nominating Committee. 

Grant	Review	Committees	

“Tourism grant programs will have grant review committees consisting of at least 

two voting members and will be responsible for reviewing grant proposals and 

developing funding recommendations based on criteria established by the STPB.” 

‐ STPB Bylaws, Article Six, Section Two 

Community	Celebrations	Committee	
Celebrations Grants are intended to help communities within Tompkins County celebrate historic or 
cultural events or people. There are two grant cycles each year and committee members review 
applications and recommend awards once in March and again in October.  There is little business 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 11



 

3 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

between review sessions except when revisions to the application guidelines are underway or if 
something unexpected occurs, which has not been often. The committee chair speaks at applicant 
workshop sessions. Many people attending these workshops are interested in obtaining information 
about Celebration Grants and many grantees that start out with a small celebration grant (the highest 
amount that may be granted is $2,000) go on to create stunning community events that have helped 
create the vibrant celebratory community we now enjoy. 
 
The committee has kept the definitions of “celebration” and “community” as loose as possible in order 
to allow people to apply for support for traditional patterns of gatherings (such as Old Home Days) and 
to be open to emerging events that reflect new thinking, communities, and aspirations such as Dragon 
Boat races, Latino Heritage Month, Trumansburg Winter Festival, Juneteenth, Lunar New Year Festival, 
etc. Committee members evaluate grant applicants based on cultural, historic and community value; 
quality of application; ability to deliver and reflection of the values of diversity and sustainability. 
Community Celebrations are not required to generate tourism. 
 
The time commitment depends upon the number of applications received. An estimate might be four to 
five hours of application review and a two hour committee meeting, twice a year. The desired skills for 
committee members are an interest in and knowledge of the county; an open mindedness about new 
proposals; and a sense of compromise and fairness.  Serving on the committee is always joyful because 
committee members do their best to promote events and learn about the ways that people within the 
county seek to reflect its past and present, its diversity and that which makes us one community. 

Tourism	Marketing	and	Advertising	Grant	Review	Committee	(now	combined	with	Tourism	
Project/New	Tourism	Initiative)	
The Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grant Review Committee works with Tourism Project and New 
Tourism Initiative Grants to provide up to 50% of out‐of‐county marketing dollars to support the overall 
success of tourism projects, both those that apply for these other tourism grants and those that apply 
independently to the Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grant Program. They use set of evaluation 
criteria which helps to shorten the process, assure fairness and start members off with a common 
language. They also make sure that these funds compliment rather than work at cross purposes with the 
CVB so that we achieve the strongest message possible.  
 
The committee meets between two and four times a year, usually in the first week of March and the 
first week of November. Members of this committee read between twenty‐five and forty grant 
applications, score them, and help make grant award recommendations to the STPB. Reading time is 
perhaps 10‐20 hours per grant cycle. Members must have the ability to evaluate a project’s budget, 
marketing strategy, likelihood of successful implementation, fit with strategic tourism plan and potential 
tourism value. 

Tourism	Project	and	New	Tourism	Initiative	Grant	Review	Committee	(now	combined	with	
Tourism	Marketing	and	Advertising)	
These grants are awarded for events and projects likely to motivate many visitors to stay overnight in 
Tompkins County hotels and bed and breakfasts, as well as for projects that support implementation of 
the County’s strategic tourism plan and where tourism benefits may accrue over time. New Tourism 
Initiatives are projects that have been in existence for less than three years. Review committee 
members should expect to spend about one hour per application for reading, contemplation and 
research. It helps if committee members have directly experienced the events and projects that have 
received grants in the past to gain a sense of their success in attracting and serving visitors. Committee 
members often spend extra time for internet research on certain new initiatives. In all 20‐30 hours is 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 12



 

4 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

needed during the month following the spring application deadline. Sometimes there is a smaller fall 
grant round; sometimes not. Each committee meeting generally lasts two hours (four hours total for 
both programs) to discuss the applications and reach a consensus on funding recommendations. 
 
Committee members should have good evaluation and negotiation skills. Members need to attend grant 
review meetings with their scoring rubrics filled out and ready to discuss the applications based on how 
well each responds to the evaluation criteria. The committee currently consists of five voting members 
of the STPB, and may add one or two associate non‐voting members to contribute additional opinions 
and expertise.  

Tourism	Capital	Grant	Committee	
The Tourism Capital Grant Committee usually reviews between four and eight applications annually. The 
review now takes place in the spring so the committee would read and meet in late March/early April. 
Projects include feasibility studies and actual capital project up to $7 million in construction value, 
though usually smaller and including exhibits as well as complete new buildings and renovations. 
 
TCAD assembles the review committee for the Tourism Capital Grants, and invites one or two members 
from the STPB and one member of the Legislature to serve on the committee. TCAD selects the 
remainder of the review committee mostly from its board for their experience in major expansion and 
development projects, which are similar in scale and complexity to major Tourism Capital Grant 
projects. Desired skills including an ability to evaluate: 

 An organization's financials, business plan, and marketing strategy,  
 How successful the organization is likely to be at implementing the proposed capital 

investment and  
 The potential tourism value of the project. 

Arts	and	Culture	Organizational	Development	Grant	Committee	
A panel staffed by the CAP Executive Director, and consisting of the members of the Strategic Tourism 
Planning Board who occupy the designated Arts and Culture seats, at least one community member, and 
at least one member of the Tompkins County Legislature meets once a year to review applications, 
annual reports, and organizational health assessments completed by an independent consultant. This 
panel makes grant recommendations to the Strategic Tourism Planning Board for approval. Occasionally, 
a second meeting is required to provide feedback on grant guidelines. Overall, the time commitment is 
not large. 

Strategic	Tourism	Implementation	Grant	Review	Committee	
A Strategic Tourism Implementation Review Committee will review, score and rank proposals and 
recommend awards to the STPB.  The purpose of this one‐time grant funding opportunity is to directly 
implement the recently adopted strategic tourism plan based on objective evaluation criteria. Final 
decisions regarding grant awards will be made by the Tompkins County Legislature. The chair of the 
STPB appoints review committee members. The size of the IRC will be between five and eight members. 
Committee membership will consist of: 

 At least two members of the Planning & Evaluation Committee of the STPB, 
 At least one member of the Tourism Capital Grant review committee, 
 At least one member of the New Tourism Initiative/Tourism Project Grant review committee, 

and 
 At least one member of the Marketing and Advertising Grant review committee. 

 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 13



 

5 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

In any case, a majority of review committee members shall consist of voting STPB members, but not all 
IRC members need be STPB members. Potential review committee members will be asked to disclose 
their organizational ties in order to limit conflicts of interest. 

Special	Committees	of	the	STPB	

Executive	Committee	
Executive Committee membership consists of STPB officers and chairs of the Budget, Planning and 
Evaluation, and Marketing Advisory Committees, and occasionally past‐chairs. The committee meets on 
an as‐needed basis to provide support to STPB officers on STPB policy and leadership issues. 

Planning	and	Evaluation	Committee	
The Planning and Evaluation Committee is tasked with developing and updating the Tompkins County 
Strategic Tourism Plan and monitoring, encouraging, and supporting its implementation. The committee 
also supports the program evaluation efforts of County staff by providing guidance and feedback on 
evaluation processes and metrics. The committee also periodically helps oversee the work of outside 
planning and evaluation consultants. Workload varies significantly year‐to‐year; members should expect 
to meet on average four to six times per year, and many members of this committee take on extra 
duties outside of meetings such as reviewing and commenting on draft reports, conducting focus groups 
and interviews, and writing summaries. 

Festivals	Committee	
A special budget line and this new committee were established in 2011 to guide the development of the 
Tompkins Festivals Program. Events and festivals have become an important part of the Tourism 
Program, and have been proliferating rapidly county‐wide with a lack of overall rational guidance. 
Consequently, the STPB established a special committee to help oversee festival activities so that they 
can be a more effective component of the Tourism Program. The responsibility for organizing and 
directing the program has been contracted out to the DIA because of its in‐house staff capabilities and 
lengthy experience. 
 
The committee's primary, and perhaps its sole purpose, is to review and guide the foundation‐building 
work of the DIA festivals staff as it prepares the guidelines, and the informational/educational activities 
that will enhance the sustainability and tourism impact of the many festival activities that take place in 
the county. Some, but not all, of the county festivals receive financial support from the Tourism 
Program, and those that do are required to align their efforts with the established guidelines. Festivals 
that do not receive tourism grants can also seek assistance from the program. The DIA prepares 
appropriate materials and rules that the Festivals Committee reviews before they are promulgated. The 
committee, however, is not charged with reviewing STPB grant proposals; that is the responsibility of 
other committees. It solely a policy‐making and policy‐review committee intended to help guide the 
contracted DIA staff. 
 
This is intended to be a small committee composed of people who have a special interest in festivals. 
There were three members in 2012. Membership can be enlarged if an STPB member has a special 
interest in joining the committee, and non‐STPB members are welcome. No special knowledge or skills 
are necessary for participation. The committee meets on an irregular schedule, not more than two or 
three times a year, primarily when there is a need to review a product or proposal. 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 14



 

6 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

Tourism	Partner	Award	Committee	
The Tourism Partner Award Committee is responsible for recruiting and reviewing nominations once or 
twice a year for Tourism Partner Awards.  Up to four awards are made each year by the Tompkins 
County Legislature to individuals or organizations in Tompkins County who are not professional meeting 
planners and who have brought in over 400 room nights to the County through their efforts to organize 
meetings or events here. In 2012, the committee consisted of one STPB member (who also chaired the 
committee), the County Senior Planner / Tourism Coordinator and the CVB’s director of group sales. 
New members from the STPB are welcome. The time commitment to serve is minimal – one or two 
short meetings a year. 

Other	Special	STPB	Committees		
The following special tourism working groups will be convened in 2014 to support implementation of 

the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. These working groups will be made up of at least two voting STPB 

members, plus outside experts/partners in the field. The initial charge of each of these committees is 

established by the STPB Planning and Evaluation Committee. 

 Ag & Culinary Tourism Working Group 

 Heritage Tourism Working Group 

 Tourism – Higher Education Working Group 

These committees do not currently exist, but some may be formed in the future to focus for a limited 
time period on helping develop fine‐grained strategies to implement certain focus areas in the strategic 
tourism plan: 

 Sustainability Tourism Task Force 

 Outdoor Recreation / Adventure Tourism Task Force 

 Sports Tourism Committee (Sports Council?) 

Advisory	Committees	Affiliated	with	the	STPB	

Marketing	Advisory	Committee	
The Marketing Advisory Committee is primarily an advisory committee to the CVB. The group consists of 
both STPB members and non‐STPB members who have some expertise in the area. Typically they meet 
about 6 times a year. The committee reviews the CVB’s annual marketing plan and approves it before it 
goes to the STPB. They also comment on other special programs or promotions that the CVB may be 
considering as well as updates on the visitor guide. In general the committee gets to give more focused 
input from the board and from outside the board that is often not possible in meetings of the full STPB 
due to time constraints. 

Beautification	Committee	
There’s an old adage in the tourism industry that ‘tourism begins with beautification and signage.’ It’s 
the same as inviting someone to your home.  You tidy up a bit, put out some flowers and then you are 
hospitable to them.  In addition, they need to be able to find you! 
 
The Beautification Committee is composed of concerned citizens and public officials interested in 
Tompkins County and Ithaca being an attractive and pleasing tourist destination as well as an attractive 
and pleasing place in which to live. Time commitment is minimal. The committee meets monthly from 
September through April to provide input on planting policies, proposals and designs. They do not 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 15



 

7 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

normally meet during the planting and blooming seasons or in December. It is useful to have an 
appreciation of flowers and public plantings and even some knowledge and interest in gardening and 
horticulture but one does not need professional experience to be a productive member of the 
committee. Members also provide support by linking to various organizations and communities 
throughout the county and by helping to find resources when needed. It is important to have 
representation from rural and urban areas.   
 
Currently Tompkins County contracts with the Chamber of Commerce to administer the Beautification, 
Signage and Public Art Program. In turn the Chamber contracts with Cooperative Extension and the 
Downtown Ithaca Alliance to provide beautification services. Historically, the committee has 
concentrated on beautification but it is expected that they will play a greater role in public art and 
signage beginning in 2013, as these areas are identified as priorities in the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. 
The committee provides input as requested to the program administrators on the budget and annual 
work plan for their fit with the overall goals of the program. 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 16



 

Page 1 of 8 2013 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity  

APPLICATION GUIDELINES  
2015 Strategic Tourism Implementation  
Grant Funding Opportunity 
 
Deadline 
Applications will be accepted in a two‐step process. Letters of 
interest with a maximum length of two pages will be accepted 
until April 1, 2015. Full proposals will then be invited from among 
the projects for which letters of interest are received. A goal is to 
have funding decisions finalized by early June, 2015. 
Email to: tknipe@tompkins‐co.org 
 
Summary of Funding Opportunity 
$150,000 has been identified in the 2015 budget of the Tompkins County Tourism Program for 
Strategic Tourism Implementation. The Tourism Program is funded by the County’s hotel room 
occupancy tax. The overarching purpose of these one‐time funds is to support significant 
implementation of critical actions identified in the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. 
 
The minimum amount that may be requested is $25,000; the maximum amount is $100,000. 
There is no match requirement, but proposals demonstrating community support by way of 
matching financial and in‐kind support, and demonstrating potential to leverage other funding 
may be rated more highly. The total number of individual awards made through this funding 
opportunity will likely be between two and five. Grant awards will be made through a 
competitive process. Both existing programs/projects and new programs/projects are eligible to 
submit proposals. This funding opportunity is not subject to the 60/40 split for tourism 
marketing/product development that is currently used as an annual budgeting guideline by the 
Tompkins County Tourism Program. This funding opportunity is designed to be flexible in terms of 
the types of proposals that will be considered and at the same time focused on direct 
implementation of critical actions and plans identified as critical actions by the 2020 Strategic 
Tourism Plan along with local tourism program/industry research priorities. It does not replace 
any existing grant program of the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
 
Critical Actions and Tourism Research 
Please refer to the Tompkins County 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan for a complete description of 
critical actions. The plan is available here: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/tourism. A concise list of 
critical actions may be found on pages 36 and 37 of the Plan; letters of interest from 
organizations other than those referenced as lead organizations will be considered.  
 
Several detailed plans and strategies have grown directly out of critical actions from the 2020 
Strategic Tourism Plan. As such, Letters of Interest for projects which will significantly implement 
any the following tourism‐related plans will also be considered: 

a. Cayuga Lake Blueway Trail Plan 
b. Tompkins County Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 17



 

Page 2 of 8 2013 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity  

c. Tompkins County Heritage Tourism Implementation Plan 
d. Tompkins County Wayfinding and Interpretive Signage Plan 
e. Tompkins Priority Trails Strategy 

 
In addition, projects serving local tourism program and tourism industry research needs will be 
considered. Specifically, eligible research projects will directly support the Tompkins County 
Tourism Program in ongoing strategic alignment of local tourism resources. 
 
Eligibility 

Not all entities are eligible to receive funding from Tompkins County government. In general, a 
County government may award a grant to another municipality and certain not‐for‐profit 
agencies. Before completing the application, please consult with your accountant or attorney to 
confirm that your entity is legally eligible to receive money from a County government. 

 

Organizations currently funded through ongoing room tax budget allocations are eligible, and 
entities proposing new projects that are not currently funded through ongoing tourism budget 
allocations are also potentially eligible. Proposals for capital projects are potentially eligible. If 
you are unsure about your eligibility, please consult with the grant administrator. 

 
Limitations 
This is a one‐time funding opportunity. Proposals must demonstrate how the project will have an 
impact with one‐time funding. Proposals that are funded in this new one‐time grant category 
may be eligible to apply for additional funding through a different grant program of the Tompkins 
County Tourism Program or through a future annual budget request, but no continuation of 
funding will be guaranteed. 
 
While proposals must implement a critical action identified in the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or 
address a specific research need, not all projects that would support implementation of a critical 
action qualify. The following types of projects are do not qualify to apply for Strategic Tourism 
Implementation funds; rather, these may qualify to apply for funding through one of the existing 
grant programs of the Tompkins County Tourism Program, or through the annual Tourism 
Program budgeting process. 

 New Tourism Initiatives whose total one time request is less than $25,000. 

 An ongoing event or project that has been funded in the past through a Tourism Project 
Grant, New Tourism Initiative Grant, and/or Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grant and 
is not proposing a significant new offering. 

 Projects that are part of the current work plan of an existing program that is funded by 
the Tompkins County Tourism Program, and where a critical action will be best 
implemented through an alignment of existing resources.  

 
Programs that are currently funded by the Tompkins County Tourism Program who wish to apply 
for Strategic Tourism Implementation funds must demonstrate that their proposal represents a 
significant new offering that falls outside the existing core work plan. However, projects must fall 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 18



 

Page 3 of 8 2013 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity  

within the mission and purpose of the applicant organization. Projects not within the recognized 
scope of the applicant’s mission are discouraged. 
 
Please refer to the Tompkins County Tourism Program’s website for information about other 
grant programs of the Tompkins County Tourism Program: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/tourism.  
Other grants may be available in these program categories: 

 Arts and Culture Organizational Development 

 New Tourism Initiatives 

 Tourism Projects 

 Tourism Capital 

 Tourism Marketing & Advertising 

 Town Beautification 

 Community Celebrations 
 
Application Timing 
A funding opportunity announcement will be made by mid‐February, 2015. Two‐page Letters of 
Interest will be due by April 1, 2015. In mid‐April, full proposals will be invited from among 
projects for which a Letter of Interest was received. The STPB and legislative review process and 
decisions will likely take place by early June, 2015. Adhering to this schedule will allow successful 
applicants to begin putting these funds to use in 2015. It will also allow applicants to know 
preliminary award decisions before budget requests to the Tompkins County Tourism Program 
are due in mid to late May. 

 

Review Committee and Award Process 
A Strategic Tourism Implementation Review Committee (IRC) will be formed to review, score and 
rank proposals based on the criteria below and recommend awards to the STPB. The final 
decision regarding grant awards will be made by the Tompkins County Legislature. Applicants are 
strongly discouraged from soliciting support from review committee members, STPB members or 
members of the legislature outside of this objective application and review process. In 
accordance with STPB bylaws, the chair of the STPB will appoint review committee members. The 
size of the IRC will be between five and eight members. Committee membership will consist of: 

 At least two members of the Planning & Evaluation Committee of the STPB, 

 At least one member of the Tourism Capital Grant review committee, 

 At least one member of the New Tourism Initiative/Tourism Project Grant review 
committee, and  

 At least one member of the Marketing and Advertising Grant review committee. 

 In any case, a majority of review committee members shall consist of voting STPB 
members, but not all IRC members need be STPB members. 

 Potential review committee members will be asked to disclose their organizational ties in 
order to limit conflicts of interest. 

 

All Letters of Interest and full proposals will be evaluated together as a pool. After Letters of 
Interest are reviewed, the IRC will issue a letter to each applicant either inviting the applicant to 
submit a full proposal or not. Applicants invited to the proposal stage are not guaranteed 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 19



 

Page 4 of 8 2013 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity  

funding, but will have a higher likelihood of being funded than if submitting a full proposal blind. 
After awards are approved by the Tompkins County Legislature, funds will be disbursed pursuant 
to a contract with the County. Awards are not intended to be on a reimbursement basis; they will 
be made up‐front.  
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Proposals will be evaluated and scored by the Strategic Tourism Implementation Review 
Committee (IRC) based on how well they respond to the criteria below.  
 
Project Readiness. Does the proposal demonstrate readiness to use the grant funds and 
implement the proposed project within 12 months of being funded? 
 
Implements Critical Action or Strategic Priority.  Does the proposal implement a critical action of 
the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or a strategic priority of the STPB in a significant way? 

 

Project Benefits. How significant is the potential for direct, measurable tourism impact in 
Tompkins County? If developed, will there be economic benefits in Tompkins County in the form 
of additional hotel/B&B room nights and visitor spending? Are the expected economic benefits 
likely to be realized, given other constraints or barriers? Are there additional significant quality of 
life benefits?  Measurable benefits may occur in years subsequent to 2015. 

 

Project Outcome and Cost. Is the overall project cost justified based on the expected benefits? 
Relative to the project cost, how significant are the potential benefits? How appropriate are the 
applicant’s cost share contributions (sources and amounts) with respect to the degree of risk, 
potential to benefit from the work, and financial status of the proposing organization and project 
team? 

 

Organizational Capacity. Is the proposed schedule of work clear and technically feasible? Does 
the project team that has been assembled have the right skills and experience to deliver? Does 
the project team have a demonstrated history of success in carrying out similar projects? 

 

Demonstration of Community Support. Does the project demonstrate potential to leverage 
funds from regional, state, private, and/or local sources other than room tax? Are matching cash 
and in‐kind contributions secured or likely? Is evidence of partnerships provided? Although no 
match is required, applications demonstrating community support by way of matching financial 
and in‐kind support will be rated more highly on this criterion. Does the proposal contain Letters 
of Commitment from participants, co‐funders, and related businesses and other organizations? 
 
Other Considerations. Proposals will be reviewed for eligibility and to determine if they reflect 
the Tompkins County Tourism Program’s overall objectives, including: encouragement of diversity 
and sustainability, coordination with similar ongoing or completed tourism projects, the general 
distribution of tourism projects among organizations and among focus areas identified by the 
strategic tourism plan, and the geographical distribution of projects within Tompkins County. 
 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 20



 

Page 5 of 8 2013 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity  

Requirements. Proposals must meet the following requirements:  
 Have the potential to directly implement a critical action identified by the Tompkins 

County 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or a strategic priority of the STPB. 

 Document the potential for economic benefits through additional room nights and visitor 
spending in Tompkins County. 

 Provide additional quality of life benefits to residents of Tompkins County. 

 
Attachments. For those projects invited to the full proposal phase, a Budget Worksheet and a 
Statement of Work are required as attachments. In addition, you may include any qualifications, 
drawings or ancillary information that is necessary to support your proposal. If appropriate; also 
include: 
 
Letters of Interest or Commitment. If you are relying on any other organization to provide 
services, equipment or cost share, include a letter from that organization describing their planned 
participation. However, due to their active sponsorship of this solicitation, Letters of Interest or 
Commitment should not be solicited from Strategic Tourism Planning Board members, members 
of the Tompkins County Legislature or staff of the Tompkins County Tourism Program. Also 
include letters of interest or commitment from team members, businesses or other organizations 
critical to the success of the project.  
 
Application Directions – Letter of Interest 
The Letter of Interest should be no more than two pages long and should be provided on the 
organization’s letterhead. At a minimum, it should provide a description of the project and 
organization, a statement about the need or opportunity, and a description of how the project 
implements a critical action from the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or specific local tourism 
research need. It should also state a specific dollar amount or range that would be requested and 
other sources of funding and support. 
 
Application Directions – Full Proposal 
If invited to submit a full proposal, please provide complete and concise answers to all questions 
in the application narrative. You may use as much space as needed, up to a maximum of 10 pages 
for the narrative. There are two required attachments: a Budget Worksheet and a Statement of 
Work. There is no page limit for attachments. Applicants are encouraged, but not required to 
submit letters of support/commitment from key partners. Do not submit the proposal guidelines 
with your proposal; the application cover page should be the first page of your proposal. Submit 
one .pdf file containing your entire proposal via email to tknipe@tompkins‐co.org. 
 
Program Budget Worksheet – Required Attachment for Full Proposals 
Full proposals are required to include a program Budget Worksheet alongside the narrative. This 
is not the organizational budget, but a budget for the project for which you are requesting grant 
funding. Please start with the Budget Worksheet Template that is provided as a Microsoft Excel 
document. All major categories of expenses should be listed. In addition, if your project will 
receive funding or in‐kind support from sources other than the Tompkins County Tourism 
Program, please list revenues from other sources and/or the value of in‐kind support in the 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 21



 

Page 6 of 8 2013 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity  

designated space. An overall organizational budget is not required, but please do provide the 
percentage of your organization’s overall annual budget that the project would constitute.   
Statement of Work – Required Attachment for Full Proposals 
Applicants invited to submit full proposals must include a Statement of Work. The Statement of 
Work should, at a minimum, include project start and end dates, a project schedule, deliverables, 
and roles and responsibilities of key people or organizations. Strong proposals will also include 
specific measures of success and means of tracking progress towards those. This is the document 
that describes how you will implement your proposed project, and achieve the objectives that 
you have set out for the project. 
 
Reporting 
Successful applicants will be required to file a grant report or reports ‐ format to be provided. 
 
Assistance 
Please call or email the grant administrator if you have any questions or need help putting 
together your application. Submission of drafts for review and feedback PRIOR to the application 
deadline is strongly encouraged. 
 

Tom Knipe, Senior Planner/Tourism Coordinator 
Tompkins County Planning Department 
121 E. Court St; Ithaca, NY 14850 
tknipe@tompkins‐co.org, 607‐274‐5560 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 22



 

Page 7 of 8 2013 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity  

APPLICATION (FULL PROPOSALS) 
2015 Strategic Tourism Implementation 
Grant Funding Opportunity  
 
I.  BASIC INFORMATION 

Project/Proposal Name:              

Applicant Organization:              

Contact Person:     _______________    ______ 

Phone:          Email:          

Request:  $          

Instruction: You may use up to 10 pages to answer the questions in the narrative section. 

II.  PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION 
Describe your proposed project. 
 
III.  STRATEGIC TOURISM IMPLEMENTATION 
Document how your proposal responds to goal(s) and action(s) of the Tompkins County 2020 
Strategic Tourism Plan and/or a Strategic Priority of the STPB. Describe how your proposal aligns 
with the aims and policies of the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
 
IV.  EXPECTED BENEFITS 
Describe, in as much detail as possible, the specific economic and quality of life benefits that you 
expect this project to deliver. 
 
V.  ORGANIZATION DESCRIPTION 
Provide a description of the applicant organization(s), its mission, board/governance, annual 
budget, year founded, key staff, how this proposal fits with other activities, and record in 
implementing similar types of projects. 
 
VI.  BUDGET NARRATIVE 
Describe how you propose to use the requested funds. 
 
VII.   IMPACT OF FUNDING 
What would be the specific impact(s) on the project of receiving less funding than you are 
requesting? 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
____Attachment A ‐ Budget Worksheet – REQUIRED (template provided) 

____Attachment B – Statement of Work – REQUIRED (no template) 

____Other Attachments ‐ OPTIONAL 

Qualifications, letters of commitment/support, drawings or ancillary information 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 23



 

Page 8 of 8 2013 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding Opportunity  

This page is for your information only.  Please do not submit 
it with your proposal. 
 
 
PROPOSAL CHECKLIST 
Please review the following checklist prior to submitting your funding request. 
 

1) ____ A Letter of Interest is submitted by no later than 11am, Wednesday April 1st. 
 
If invited to submit a full proposal, continue to #2.  If not invited to submit a full proposal, stop 
here. 

 
2) ____ Questions I through VII are answered completely and concisely, in no more than 

ten pages (proposal narrative) 
 

3) ____ The budget worksheet is completed using the template (required attachment) 
 

4)         The Statement of Work is complete and accurate (required attachment) 
 
5) ____ Optional attachments are provided as needed 

 
6) ____ The proposal narrative, required attachments, and any optional attachments are 

compiled into a single .pdf file. 
7) ____Email this proposal file electronically to tknipe@tompkins‐co.org no later than 

the deadline. Mailed, faxed or hand‐delivered proposals will not be accepted. Upon 
receipt of your complete proposal, you will receive an email confirmation of receipt. 

 
 

If you do not receive a confirmation via email by the end of business on the day the 
letter or proposal is due, please follow up to ensure that your letter or proposal was 
received! 

 

 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 24



 
CVB Report 

Monthly Update, January, 2015 
 
2015 Work Plan 
Emphasizing Digital Marketing, Visitor Upselling, Motorcoach Sales 
CVB staff is finalizing its 2015 workplan for presentation in February. We’re planning no major strategic 
changes. We will continue to expand digital marketing efforts (vs traditional print & broadcast), institute 
a visitor services sales training and incentive program to encourage and track visitor upselling, and 
continue the emphasis on motorcoach sales. We’re also implementing interesting tactical shifts 
suggested by last year’s STPB evaluation program, namely more promotion to regional day trippers 
versus exclusive focus on “heads in beds,” greater outreach on the hills to secure group business and 
increased collection of visitor information at visitor centers to fine tune visitor services. 
 
Visitor Services Technology Initiative 
Planning Begins 
CVB is talking with Communique Design & Marketing to help implement the Visitor Services Technology 
Initiative announced last month. The Initiative, funded by a $30,000 NYS REDC grant, will create a 
mobile/digital platform allowing visitors to interact with our visitor centers via smartphone. 
Communique has extensive experience in communications strategy and is a NYS‐certified minority and 
women‐owned business‐‐which fulfills a requirement of the grant. 
 
Hotels: Slow November 
2014 room revenue remains above projections 
Though sales declined 2,000 room‐nights from an unusually strong November 2013, Tompkins County 
hotel business remains on pace for a record year. Complicating factors included: 

 Buffalo blizzard and Thanksgiving Nor’Easter impacted leisure traffic 

 2013 wrestling event at IC wasn’t repeated in 2014 

 Friday of Cornell First Family Weekend fell in October in 2014 
Highlights from the November Smith Travel Research report: 
 

Nov. 2014    Ithaca‐Tompkins    USA  

OCC Rate     50.1%  ‐7.9%   58.7% +2.5%

Ave Daily Rate  $143   ‐0.6%   $112  +4.5%

RevPAR    $72   ‐8.4%   $66  +7.1%

Supply      +0.1%     +0.9%

Demand    24,877  ‐7.9%     +3.4%

Revenue    $3.6 mil  ‐8.4%     +8.1%

YTD Revenue  $51.7 mil  +8.5%      +9.2%

 

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 25



1	|	P a g e 	
“Understanding	the	Failure	of	the	Finger	Lakes	Wine	Center”,	November	2014	

Edited	January	2015	

	

Understanding the Failure of the 
Finger Lakes Wine Center 

Lessons  for the Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Christy Agnese, November 2014 
	
Framework	
Between	2004	and	2011,	Tompkins	County	invested	$260,822	in	the	Finger	Lakes	Wine	
Center	(FLWC).	The	Center	was	open	between	November	6,	2010	and	September	1,	2012	‐	
less	than	two	years.	In	fall	2012,	the	Strategic	Tourism	Planning	Board	(STPB)	adopted	the	
“Tompkins	County	2020	Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Implementation	Status	Report”	which	Tom	
Knipe	developed	on	behalf	of	the	STPB	Planning	and	Evaluation	Committee.	In	adopting	the	
report,	the	STPB	agreed	to	take	the	following	action	in	2014:	“Deconstruct	the	failure	of	the	
Finger	Lakes	Wine	Center	for	lessons	learned	for	the	STPB	and	staff”.	
	
The	goal	is	not	to	do	a	deep	forensic	audit,	but	to	review	key	documents,	conduct	
interviews	with	key	individuals,	and	write	a	summary	of	lessons	and	recommendations.		
	
Community	Members	Interviewed	

Martha	Armstrong	 	 TCAD,	Tourism	Capital	Grant	program	administrator	
Beverly	Baker	 	 Former	STPB	member	
Larry	Baum	 	 	 FLWC	treasurer		
Nancy	Battistella	 	 FLWC	board	member	and	Six	Mile	Creek	Vineyard	
Fred	Bonn	 	 	 CVB	director	and	vice‐chair	FLWC	Board	
Gary	Ferguson	 	 DIA,	ex‐officio	STPB	member	
Ken	Jupiter		 	 	 STPB	member	
Tom	Knipe	 	 	 County	Tourism	Program	staff	
Jackie	Kippola,		 	 Former	County	Tourism	Program	staff	
Gene	Pierce		 	 	 FLWC	board	member	and	Glenora	Wine	Cellars	
David	Sparrow	 	 Former	Chair	of	the	FLWC	board	and	the	STPB	
Kate	Travis	 	 	 2012	FLWC	board	chair	
Chuck	Tauk	 	 	 Owner	of	Sheldrake	Point	Vineyards,	Investor	in	FLWC	
Scott	Wiggins		 	 Former	STPB	member	

	
Interview	Questions	

 What	was	the	role	of	the	STPB	and	the	Tourism	Program	in	promoting	the	
development	of	the	Finger	Lakes	Wine	Center?	

 What	do	you	think	were	the	most	important	on‐the‐ground	factors	that	led	to	the	
failure	of	the	Wine	Center?	

 Was	there	something	specific	that	happened	or	didn’t	happen	that	was	critical?	
 What	background	or	structural	issues	may	have	contributed	to	its	failure?	
 What	lessons	might	the	STPB	and	Tourism	Program	staff	take	from	the	failure	of	the	

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 26



2	|	P a g e 	
“Understanding	the	Failure	of	the	Finger	Lakes	Wine	Center”,	November	2014	

Edited	January	2015	

	

Finger	Lakes	Wine	Center?	
 Are	there	any	other	concerns	or	issues	about	the	Wine	Center	that	you’d	like	to	

voice?	
	
Findings	

 Opening	undercapitalized	negatively	impacted	all	aspects	of	operation—staffing,	
fundraising,	product	and	revenue	development,	signage,	marketing,	and	website	
development.	
	

 The	business	plan	may	have	suffered	from	unrealistic	revenue	assumptions,	and	in	
any	case	was	not	successfully	implemented.	The	center	opened	in	the	off‐season,	
during	the	recession,	which	further	impacted	the	implementation	of	the	plan.	
	

 The	Finger	Lakes	winegrowing	industry	did	not	embrace	the	Center’s	marketing	
role	or	provide	generous	financial	support	to	the	Center,	with	exceptions	among	
some	of	the	industry’s	members.	
	

 STPB	adopted	a	role	as	a	“cheerleader”	for	this	venture,	which	impeded	critical	
conversation	to	occur	at	the	board	and	committee	level.	
	

 There	was	a	strong	overlap	in	leadership	of	STPB	and	Finger	Lakes	Wine	Center	
Board.	

	
Board	Recommendations	
Creating	a	board	culture	which	encourages	critical	analysis	

o The	Tourism	Board	is	comprised	by	a	diverse	group	of	individuals	representing	
various	sectors	in	the	community.	It	is	recommended	that	all	board	members	
bring	their	own	expertise,	viewpoint,	and	critical	observations	to	discussions	
and	projects	at	the	committee	and	board	level	and	are	encouraged	to	ask	
questions	on	topics	outside	of	their	area	of	expertise.	

	
Empowering	evaluative	role	of	staff	

o Tourism	Program	staff,	coordinators,	and	ex‐officio	members	are	professionals	
in	the	tourism	field.	It	is	recommended	that	these	individuals	provide	critical	
analysis,	evaluation,	and	recommendations	to	committees	and	the	board.		

	
Recognizing	conflict	of	interest	

o It	is	recommended	the	board	revisit	the	conflict	of	interest	policy	to	ensure	that	
it	meets	the	needs	of	the	board.			

	
Funding	Recommendations	
Encouraging	transparency	in	grant	making	process	

o Organizations	often	apply	for	multiple	grant	programs	with	different	grant	
review	committees	over	the	course	of	multiple	years.	Since	the	personnel	varies	
greatly,	it	is	recommended	that	the	board	explore	the	concept	of	listing	the	

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 27



3	|	P a g e 	
“Understanding	the	Failure	of	the	Finger	Lakes	Wine	Center”,	November	2014	

Edited	January	2015	

	

lifetime	total	amount	of	STPB	funding	along	with	the	new	ask	and	
recommendation.	

Optimizing	investment	in	new	initiatives	
Investing	in	new	initiatives	is	inherently	riskier	than	funding	existing	events,	programs,	
and	organizations,	but	it	is	vital	to	achieving	the	goals	of	the	2020	Strategic	Tourism	
Plan.	It	is	recommended	that	the	board	exploring	the	following:	

o Establish	a	threshold	of	Tourism	Program	investment	that	triggers	a	
more	thorough	review	of	an	organization	or	project,	including	its	
business	plan.	In	some	cases,	staff	and/or	the	board	may	be	in	a	position	
to	conduct	a	thorough	review	without	external	support,	and	in	some	
cases	external	support	may	be	useful.	

o Further	utilizing	contingencies	on	grants	to	allow	for	greater	
accountability	

o Developing	a	framework	for	assessing	risk	for	new	initiatives.	The	
framework	could	provide	a	structured	method	for	balancing	the	level	of	
investment,	likelihood	of	success,	and	the	importance	of	the	project	to	our	
overall	tourism	aims	and	goals.	

o Reviewing	the	New	Tourism	Initiative	grant	program	to	ensure	the	
program	provides	technical	and	funding	support	tailored	to	the	needs	of	
new	organizations	and	programs.	

	

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 28



 

1 | P a g e  
“Understanding the Closure of the Ticket Center”, December 2014 

Edited January 2015 

Understanding the Closure of  
Ticket Center Ithaca 

Lessons for the Tompkins County Tourism Program 
John Spence, Steve Hugo, Lynnette Scofield; December 2014 
	
Framework	
Between	1997	and	2013,	Tompkins	County	invested	$460,820	in	Ticket	Center	Ithaca.	In	
October	2013,	the	Ticket	Center	closed	after	17	years	in	operation.	In	fall	2013,	the	
Strategic	Tourism	Planning	Board	(STPB)	adopted	the	“Tompkins	County	2020	Strategic	
Tourism	Plan	Implementation	Status	Report”	which	Tom	Knipe	developed	on	behalf	of	the	
STPB	Planning	and	Evaluation	Committee.	In	adopting	the	report,	the	STPB	asked	the	
Community	Arts	Partnership	(CAP)	to	take	the	following	action	in	2014:	“Deconstruct	the	
closure	of	the	Ticket	Center	for	lessons	learned	for	the	STPB	and	staff,	and	report	to	the	
STPB”.	
	
The	goal	is	not	to	do	a	deep	forensic	audit,	but	to	review	key	documents,	conduct	
interviews	with	key	individuals,	and	write	a	summary	of	lessons	and	recommendations.	
	
Historical	Background	
The	Ticket	Center	(T.C.)	was	created	to	assist	local	organizations	selling	tickets	to	
performances	of	any	kind	to	save	the	cost	of	running	their	own	box	office.		

 The	Ticket	Center	began	in	the	mid‐	1980s	as	a	store	front	in	the	Dewitt	Mall	and	
was	largely	volunteer	driven.	In	the	early	1990s,	part	time	staffing	was	provided	by	
the	Community	Arts	Partnership.	In	1995	The	Clinton	House	first	floor	was	home	to	
CAP,	the	Cayuga	Chamber	Orchestra,	the	Hangar	Theatre,	and	the	Kitchen	Theatre.		
The	lobby	was	renovated	to	include	the	Visitor’s	Information	Center	and	the	Ticket	
Center.	In	2000	the	Ticket	Center	computerized	all	of	its	operations.	In	2009	
operations	were	moved	to	Center	Ithaca	as	the	original	Clinton	House	arts	
organizations	all	found	new	homes	in	different	locations	downtown.	

 Organizations	regularly	participating	in	the	Ticket	Center	program	included	the	
Cayuga	Chamber	Orchestra,	The	Kitchen	Theatre,	the	State	Theatre,	the	Hangar	
Theatre,	Ithaca	College’s	theatre	at	the	Dillingham	Center	and	a	number	of	single	
event	producers.	

 The	Community	Arts	Partnership	(CAP)	continued	to	administer	the	program	
providing	hardware	(workstations,	ticket	printers,	ticket	scanners);	collection	and	
distribution	of	ticket	revenues;	display	of	client	marketing	materials;	monthly	
emails	promoting	ticketed	events;	print	advertising	promoting	the	Ticket	Center	
and	IthacaEvents.com;	weekly	radio	updates	on	WHCU;	promotion	through	social	
media;	and	Promoter	Motor	distribution	of	Ticket	Center	event	posters.		

 Funding	of	the	T.C.	came	from	fees	placed	on	each	ticket	sold,	and	intermittently	
from	lump	sum	payments	from	organizations	selling	tickets.	The	County	Tourism	
Program	provided	$460K	in	operating	support	over	17	years.	The	STPB	also	

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 29



 

2 | P a g e  
“Understanding the Closure of the Ticket Center”, December 2014 

Edited January 2015 

required	that	all	performance	producing	organizations	that	were	receiving	Arts	&	
Culture	Organizational	Development	(ACOD)	grant	funding	sell	their	tickets	through	
the	Ticket	Center.	

 When	the	State	and	Kitchen	Theatres	pulled	out	in	2013	to	start	selling	tickets	on	
their	own	The	Ticket	Center	saw	a	reduction	of	70%	in	ticketing	revenues.		

 The	Ticket	Center	operation	was	closed	in	October	of	2013.	
	
Community	Members	Interviewed	

Rick	Adie			 	 STPB	Chair	 	 	
Brett	Bossard			 Former	CAP	Executive	Director	
Will	Burbank			 Tompkins	County	Legislator	
Richard	Driscoll	 Former	CAP	Executive	Director	
Jamie	Ferris		 	 CAP	Board	Chair	
Josh	Friedman		 Hangar	Theatre,	Executive	Director		
Tom	Knipe		 	 County	Tourism	Program	staff	 		
Doug	Levine		 	 State	Theatre	Executive	Director	 	
Susie	Monagan		 Ithaca	College	Theater	Department.	

		 Stephen	Nunley										Kitchen	Theatre								
Jon	Reis																		 Former	STPB	Member	
John	Spence	 	 Current	CAP	Executive	Director	
	

Findings		
Role	of	the	STPB	and	Tourism	Program	

 Over	the	years	the	Tompkins	County	Tourism	Program	provided	direct	funding	to	
the	Ticket	Center,	through	CAP,	for	the	program’s	administration	and	required	that	
arts	organizations	receiving	ACOD	funding	sell	all	of	their	event	tickets	through	the	
Ticket	Center.	

 Beyond	the	providing	funding	the	STPB	left	the	administration	of	the	program	to	
CAP	and	relied	on	regular	reports	from	CAP’s	executive	director	on	the	Ticket	
Center’s	condition.	

	
Reasons	for	closure	
	 Community	Arts	Partnership	

o Poor	communication	by	both	CAP	and	organizations	using	the	ticketing	
services	created	a	disconnect	between	CAP	and	Ticket	Center	clients,	a	lack	
of	trust,	and	the	inability	to	come	to	collaboratively	agreed	upon	solutions.	

o Poor	management	practices.	Key	examples	are	CAP’s	signing	a	five	year	
contract	with	the	software	provider	while	ticketing	organizations	were	only	
asked	to	sign	one	year	contracts,	and	in	some	cases	were	being	provided	
service	with	no	signed	contract	in	place.	Generally	CAP	received	poor	marks	
from	clients	and	customers	for	not	responding	to	requests	for	timely	reports	
needed	by	the	ticketing	organizations,	and	for	customer	service	in	general.	

o CAP’s	board	should	have	been	more	aware	and	involved	with	the	
management	decisions,	particularly	those	involving	large	contractual	
obligations.	

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 30



 

3 | P a g e  
“Understanding the Closure of the Ticket Center”, December 2014 

Edited January 2015 

o CAP’s	reports	to	the	STPB	gave	a	more	positive	picture	of	the	Ticket	Center	
than	was	warranted.	

	 	
Technology	

o The	Ticket	Center	grew	from	employing	almost	no	technology	to	being	
heavily	technology	dependent.	The	software	that	allowed	single	ticket	sales	
and	subscription	sales	became	more	sophisticated,	could	deliver	services	
beyond	simply	selling	tickets,	and	became	more	affordable	to	smaller	
nonprofits	over	the	lifetime	of	the	Ticket	Center.	By	2013	organizations	could	
buy	their	own	ticketing	software	for	under	$5,000	that	would	work	
seamlessly	with	their	fundraising	software	and	their	marketing	and	
promotional	programs,	and	could	provide	an	additional	source	of	earned	
income	for	the	organization.	

	
	 Business	model	

o The	Ticket	Center	started	with	a	staff	of	one	in	the	DeWitt	Mall	selling	
preprinted	tickets	out	of	a	cubby	cabinet.	It	was	seen	as	a	benefit	to	the	
organizations	that	could	not	afford	to	run	their	own	box	office	and	its	sole	
purpose	was	selling	tickets.	

o The	organizations	using	the	Ticket	Center	became	increasingly	interested	in	
seeing	it	provide	a	robust	marketing	component,	driving	potential	customers	
into	the	theaters.		

o The	software	developed	to	the	point	where	data	collection,	reporting,	and	
marketing	support	were	considered	basic	requirements	of	any	ticketing	
program.	Selling	tickets	has	become	a	small	piece	of	a	ticketing,	marketing,	
planning	and	promotional	program.		

o The	business	model	at	the	end	required	multiple	elements	of	tech	support,	
ongoing	user	training,	program	marketing	and	expanded	customer	service,	
all	of	which	require	significant	resources	to	be	successfully	administered.	

	
What	might	have	made	the	Ticket	Center	a	success?	

o A	cooperative	model.	If	the	participating	organizations	were	to	come	
together	to	decide	upon	and	articulate	desired	outcomes,	policies,	and	
allocation	of	resources	in	a	cooperative	model	there	might	have	been	the	
flexibility	and	the	nimble	reactions	needed	for	a	Ticket	Center	to	succeed.	
The	significant	variations	in	size,	programs,	and	priorities	among	the	
organizations	using	the	Ticket	Center	may	have	made	general	agreement	and	
collaboration	difficult.	

o A	for‐profit	model.	The	other	option	would	be	the	creation	of	a	for‐profit	
organization,	or	a	501c3	nonprofit,	specifically	focused	on	the	management	
of	a	ticket	center.		A	single‐focus	organization	would	understand	the	various	
elements	needed	for	a	successful	venture:	capitalization,	tech	support,	
training,	customer	service,	marketing,	human	resources,	etc.		

o A	successful	Ticket	Center	needed	an	administrator	that	was	in	a	position	to	
focus	on	the	evolving	business	of	a	Ticket	Center,	as	opposed	to	a	program	

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 31



 

4 | P a g e  
“Understanding the Closure of the Ticket Center”, December 2014 

Edited January 2015 

that	was	tangential	to	its	mission.	At	some	point	the	Ticket	Center	should	
have	been	separated	from	CAP	and	become	its	own	organization.	

	
	
	
Lessons	

 There	needed	to	be	a	thorough,	ongoing	evaluation	of	the	program,	its	intentions,	
finances,	established	indicators	of	growth	and	decline,	and	documented	results.		As	a	
significant	funder,	the	STPB	and	Tourism	Program	staff	had	an	appropriate	role	to	
play	along	these	lines.		Don’t	be	afraid	to	ask	tough	questions	and	demand	verifiable	
answers.	
	

 The	Tourism	Program	should	be	willing	to	consider	ceasing	funding	for	a	program	
that	is	not	working.	It	seems	clear	that	the	Ticket	Center	did	not	have	a	working	
business	model	for	at	least	two	years	before	the	program	closed	in	2013.	The	
ticketing	organizations	were	unhappy	with	the	service	and	the	options	they	were	
being	given.	CAP	had	been	subsidizing	the	operation	and	documenting	ongoing	
financial	losses,	and	the	Tourism	Program	was	contributing	funding	and	energy	
without	satisfactory	returns.	
	

 In	requiring	ACOD	recipients	to	use	the	Ticket	Center,	the	County	Tourism	Program	
created	a	structure	which	added	to	difficulty	in	developing	a	healthy	service	
provider‐client	relationship	between	CAP	and	Ticket	Center	clients.	

	
Board	Recommendations	
Creating	a	board	culture	which	encourages	critical	analysis	

o The	Tourism	Board	is	comprised	by	a	diverse	group	of	individuals	
representing	various	sectors	in	the	community.	It	is	recommended	that	all	
board	members	bring	their	own	expertise,	viewpoint,	and	critical	
observations	to	discussions	and	projects	at	the	committee	and	board	level	
and	are	encouraged	to	ask	questions	on	topics	outside	of	their	area	of	
expertise.	
	

Empowering	evaluative	role	of	staff	
o Tourism	Program	staff,	coordinators,	and	ex‐officio	members	are	

professionals	in	the	tourism	field.	It	is	recommended	that	these	individuals	
provide	critical	analysis,	evaluation,	and	recommendations	to	committees	
and	the	board.		

	
Optimizing	investment	in	major	initiatives	

o Establish	thresholds	of	Tourism	Program	investment	which	trigger	a	more	
thorough	review	. of an organization or	project,	including	its	business	plan.	In	
some	cases,	staff	and/or	the	board	may	be	in	a	position	to	conduct	a	
thorough	review	without	external	support,	and	in	some	cases	external	
support	may	be	useful.	

	

1-21-15 STPB Agenda Packet 
Page 32


	1_21_15_STPB_agenda
	STPB conflict of interest policy and disclosure
	stpb conflict 0309
	STPB disclos 0309

	STPB Roles & Responsibilities
	2015 committee assignments _ 1_16 draft
	2014 STPB Committee Descriptions
	STP Implementation GUIDELINES 2015-DRAFT-1-15
	1CVB January board report
	Understanding the Failure of the FLWC_report to STPB_1-21-15 edits for adoption
	Understanding the Closure of the Ticket Center_Summary for STPB_January edits for adoption



